

ANNUAL ABRIDGED REPORT, 2014-15





DR. MUHAMMAD AKHTER (Director)

RICE RESEARCH INSTITUTE KALA SHAH KAKU, 17 KM G.T. ROAD, LAHORE, PAKISTAN

Ph. (Office): +92-42-37951826, Cell. +92-03024353632, Fax #: +92-42-37951827, Email: director_rice@yahoo.com

www.facebook.com/rriksk | www.twitter.com/RRIKSK http://www.aari.punjab.gov.pk/institutes-sections/rice-research-institute

Compiled/ Composed by:

Table of Contents

| OVE | RVIEW | 1 |
|-------|-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|-----|
| I. | RICE BREEDING | 2 |
| | Promising lines with their salient characteristics | 2 |
| | ◆ <i>RRI</i> 7 | 2 |
| | ✤ PK 8892-2-4-1-3-1 | 2 |
| | ♦ PK 8685-5-1-1-1-1. | 2 |
| | ✤ PK 8431-2-1-2-4 | 2 |
| | ★ KSK 462 | 2 |
| | ★ KSK 464 | 3 |
| | National uniform rice vield trial | 3 |
| | Regional adaptability vield trial | 3 |
| | Fine grain vield trial | 3 |
| | Coarse grain vield trial | 4 |
| | Breeding Studies | 4 |
| | → Hybridization | 4 |
| | ♦ Development of BLB resistant basmati varieties/ lines | 4 |
| | Development of rice hybrids | |
| | Seed Production | 4 |
| II. | AGRONOMY | 5 |
| | Effect of transplanting dates on the rice vield | 5 |
| | Optimizing seed invigoration techniques to enhance emergence of direct seeded rice | 5 |
| | Effect of tillage systems on rice crop growth and productivity in rice-wheat cropping system | 5 |
| | Effect of different planting methods on agro-physiological characteristics and economics of | |
| | cultivation of rice crop | 6 |
| III. | SOIL CHEMISTRY | 6 |
| | Screening of lines/ varieties against salinity in nutrient culture solution | 6 |
| | Bio-fortification of rice varieties with zinc and iron | 7 |
| | Evaluation of different models of fertilizers for yield prediction of rice | 8 |
| IV. | ENTOMOLOGY | 8 |
| | Screening of pesticides for the effective control of different rice pest under field conditions | 8 |
| | Screening of breeding material for resistance against rice leaffolder (<i>Cnaphalocrocis medinalis</i>) | |
| | under field conditions | 9 |
| ۷. | PLANT PATHOLOGY | 9 |
| | Screening of rice lines/ varieties against rice blast (Pyricularia oryzae) | 9 |
| | Screening of rice lines/ varieties against bacterial leaf blight (Xanthomonas oryzae pv. oryzae) | |
| | disease | 9 |
| | Screening of genetic stock against stem rot (Sclerotium oryzae) disease | 10 |
| | Efficacy of different fungicides for the control of blast (Pyricularia oryzae) disease | 10 |
| | Effect of different chemicals on bacterial leaf blight (Xanthomonas oryzae pv oryzae) | 10 |
| | Efficacy of different fungicides for the control of brown leaf spot of rice (Helminthosporium oryz | ae) |
| | | 11 |
| VI. | RICE TECHNOLOGY | 11 |
| | Effect of transplanting date on the quality characteristics of different fine grain rice lines | 11 |
| VII. | PUBLICATIONS | 13 |
| VIII. | SENIOR SCIENTISTS | 16 |
| IX. | METROLOGICAL DATA | 17 |
| | | |



OVERVIEW

Rice is an important food as well as cash crop of Pakistan. It occupies about 11% of total cultivated area in Pakistan. Rice is planted on about 7.03 million acres and produces about 6.90 million metric tons of milled rice. Pakistan is the 4th largest rice exporting country in the world after India, Vietnam and Thailand. About 0.676 million metric tons Basmati rice is exported to the Middle East countries, Europe and America, whereas, 3.045 million metric tons coarse rice is exported to different countries of Asia and Africa. During 2014- 15, Pakistan earned US\$ 1.85 billion foreign exchange from the export of rice.

The Punjab is the biggest rice producer province of the country. In the province, during 2014-15, the total area under rice crop was 4.640 million acres and production was 3.648 million tones. Generally, the Punjab contributes 52% to the national production while provinces of Sindh, Baluchistan and KPK contribute 38%, 8% and 2%, respectively.

Two promising lines of basmati rice viz., PK 8892 and RRI 7 have been developed. Both lines yields 6.00 and 6.1 t/ ha with more than 7.60mm and 8.11mm average grain length and 15.1 and 17.5mm cooking quality, respectively.

I. RICE BREEDING

Promising lines with their salient characteristics

* RRI 7

This basmati line (Fig. 1) yields 6.1 t/ ha, short stature and early maturing with more than 8.11mm average grain length (AGL). The cooking quality (CGL) of this line is very good (17.5mm).



Fig. 1: RRI 7

PK 8892-2-4-1-3-1

This basmati line yields 6.0 t/ ha with more than 7.60mm AGL (Fig. 2). The cooking quality of this line is very good (15.1mm).



Fig. 2: PK 8892-2-4-1-3-1

* PK 8685-5-1-1-1

This basmati line yields 5.9 t/ ha with more than 7.8mm AGL (Fig. 3). The cooking quality of this line is good (13.7mm).



Fig. 3: PK 8685-5-1-1-1-1

* PK 8431-2-1-2-4

It is a high yielding basmati line having yield potential of 6.5 t/ha with more than 7.5mm AGL (Fig. 4). Cooking quality of this line is good (13.7mm). Due to its physicochemical properties; it is suitable for making white as well as parboiling rice.



Fig. 4: PK 8431-2-1-2-4

* KSK 462

It is high yielding coarse grain line (Fig. 5) having yield of more than 8.00 t/ha. It's average grain length is 6.49mm with good cooking quality.



Fig. 5: KSK 462

* KSK 464

A high yielding coarse grain line having yield of more than 8.0 t/ha (Fig. 6). Its average grain length is 7.03mm with good cooking quality.



Fig. 6: KSK 464

National uniform rice yield trial

In fine grain group, PK 8685-5-1-1-1-1 and RRI 7 out yielded the check varieties at four locations throughout Pakistan by producing 3.85 and 3.76 t/ha while the check varieties (Basmati 515 and Super Basmati) produced 3.58 and 3.54 t/ha, respectively.

Regional adaptability yield trial

In fine grain group, six lines were tested including Basmati 515 as check variety.



Fig. 7: Yield comparison of fine grain lines

Five lines (Fig. 7) viz., 8431-1-2-1-2-4, 8892-4-2-1-1, PK 8430-1-2-1-3, PK 8667-8-5-1 and PK 8809-3-1-1-1 out yielded the check variety and gave yield of 4.73, 4.68, 4.16, 4.06 and 3.75 t/ha, respectively as compared to check variety- Basmati 515 (3.59 t/ha).

In coarse grain group, six lines were tested including the check variety KSK 133 (Fig. 8). Five lines viz., KSK 466, KSK 462, KSK 474, KSK 463 and PK 8649 out yielded the check variety by producing paddy yield of 4.84, 4.82, 4.79, 4.77 and 4.59 t/ ha, respectively followed by check variety KSK 133 (4.58 t/ ha).



Fig. 8: Yield comparison of coarse grain lines

Fine grain yield trial

Eighteen newly selected uniform lines along with a check were evaluated in yield trial in RCBD. Four lines viz., PK 9435-4-1-1 (4.39 t/ha), PK 9301-5-2-1-2 (4.06 t/ha), PK 9606-1-1-1-1 (4.05 t/ha and PK 9531-6-3-1-1 (4.01

t/ha) out yielded the check variety Basmati 515 (4.00 t/ha).

Coarse grain yield trial

Five lines viz., PK 9259-4-1-1-1 (7.23 t/ha), KSK 488 (6.82 t/ha), KSK 482 (6.52 t/ha), KSK 486 (6.50 t/ha), KSK 487 (6.36 t/ha) out yielded the check variety KSK 133 (6.32 t/ha).

Breeding Studies

Hybridization

To combat different problems like pest insects/ diseases, salinity, drought and to improve grain quality and yield of basmati rice, 408 crosses were attempted and 345 successful crosses were harvested for further evaluation. lines have BLB resistance genes like *Xa4, xa5, Xa7, xa13* and *Xa21*. The lines IRBB 13, 21, 54, 57, 58, 64, 65 and 66 showed better resistance in local conditions.

Development of rice hybrids

Twelve local hybrids were tested in nonreplicated yield trials. Five hybrids out yielded the check variety KSK 133.

Seed Production

Pre basic seed of Basmati (668 Kg), coarse grain varieties (421 Kg) and 698 Kg of fine grain non- aromatic varieties (PS-2 and PK 386) were produced during 2014-15.

Detail of successful crosses

| \geq | High Yielding | 75 |
|------------------|--------------------------------|----|
| \succ | Salt tolerance | 14 |
| \succ | Genetic diversity | 23 |
| \succ | Drought | 03 |
| \succ | Early maturing & Short stature | 38 |
| \succ | Plant type | 12 |
| \succ | Flood tolerance | 10 |
| \succ | Back cross | 03 |
| \succ | Quality | 78 |
| \succ | BLB | 63 |
| \triangleright | Aerobic | 02 |
| \triangleright | Blast | 03 |
| \succ | Hopper | 02 |
| \succ | Aroma | 07 |
| \succ | Plant type | 12 |

Development of BLB resistant basmati varieties/ lines

In F₇, 24 lines and 10 uniform lines (having single or combination of genes like *Xa4*, *xa5*, *Xa7*, *xa13*, *Xa21*) and in F₆, 31 lines were studied and 22 progeny lines (having single or combination of genes like *Xa4*, *xa5*, *Xa7*, *xa13*, *Xa21*) were harvested. Most of IRBB

II. AGRONOMY

Effect of transplanting dates on the rice yield

The study was aimed to find out the optimum period of transplanting for fine and coarse grain lines/ varieties to harvest maximum paddy yield of quality rice. An experiment was laid out in RCBD (factorial) with standard crop management practices. Significantly the highest yield was achieved with PK 8431-1-21-2-4 (5.53 t/ha) when transplanted on 14th July (Fig. 9).



Fig. 9: Effect of transplanting dates (14 July) on paddy yield of fine grain lines/ varieties (LSD 0.54)

In case of coarse lines/ varieties, highest yield (5.83 t/ha) was recorded in case of KSK 474 when transplanted on 27th May (Fig. 10).



Fig. 10: Effect of transplanting date (27 May) on paddy yield of coarse grain lines/varieties (LSD 0.56)

Optimizing seed invigoration techniques to enhance emergence of direct seeded rice

A lab experiment was laid out in CRD to explore the appropriate seed invigoration techniques to reduce the emergence time and improve stand establishment of direct seeded rice. The results (Fig. 11) revealed that the minimum mean emergence time (MET) was recorded in "on-farm priming 24 h" (4.63 days).



Fig. 11: Effect of different seed invigoration techniques on MET of fine grain rice (LSD 0.889)

Effect of tillage systems on rice crop growth and productivity in rice-wheat cropping system

To find out an appropriate tillage-residue (TR) system for productivity enhancement of ricewheat cropping system through resource conservation, an experiment was laid in RCBD with split plot arrangement. Maximum paddy (3.81 t/ha) was achieved in transplanted rice with partial burning of wheat residue (Fig.12).



Fig. 12: Effect of different tillage-residue systems on paddy yield of fine grain rice (LSD 0.115)



Fig. 13: Wheat residue management in direct seeded rice

Effect of different planting methods on agro-physiological characteristics and economics of cultivation of rice crop

The study was designed in RCBD to explore an appropriate planting method to attain higher paddy yield on sustainable basis. The data showed that the maximum paddy yield (4.23 t/ ha) was achieved with DSR-broadcast (Fig. 14).



Fig. 14: Effect of different planting methods on paddy yield of fine grain rice (LSD 0.294)



Fig. 15: Ridge planting in direct seeded rice

III. SOIL CHEMISTRY

Screening of lines/ varieties against salinity in nutrient culture solution

Trial was conducted to select salt tolerant local rice lines/varieties. The nursery of 41 fine and 14 coarse grain rice lines/ varieties were sown on raised beds. Thirty five days old seedlings were transplanted on thermo pore sheets (Fig. 16) placed in tubs containing nutrient culture solution (Yoshida solution).



Fig. 16: Rice lines/varieties transplanted on thermo pore sheet

The salinity levels such as 5.0, 7.5 and 10.0 ds/m electrical conductivity (EC) of the nutrient culture solution were maintained by adding mixture of salts of NaCl, Na₂SO₄, CaCl₂ and MgSO₄. After six weeks, the observations on salt tolerance were recorded.

The results revealed that 11 fine grain rice lines/ varieties viz; PK 9748-16-2-1, PK 9831-16-2, RRI 4, PK 8431-6-1-1-1, PK 8809-3-1-1-1, PK 9736-3-2-1,PK 9736-12-1-1, PK 9533-9-6-1-1, PK 9533-9-6-3-1, PK 9194-54-1-1-2-2 and PK 10052-1 were found moderately resistant at 5.0 and 7.5 ds/m. However, PK 8685-5-1-1-1-1, Shaheen Basmati, Basmati 385 and PK 8431-1-2-1-2-3 were found moderately resistant only at 5.0 ds/m (Fig. 17).



Fig. 17: Response of fine grain rice lines/ varieties against salinity

The results (Fig. 18) showed that five coarse grain rice lines/ varieties viz; PK 7688-1-1-2-2, PK 8649-5-1-1-2, PK 9118-2-3-3-1-1-9, KSK 481 and KSK 468 were found moderately resistant at EC of 5.0 and 7.5 dS/ m. However, KSK 459, KSK 471, NIAB IR-9, KSK 133, KSK 434 and KS 282 were found moderately resistant only at 5 dS/ m.



Fig. 18: Response of coarse grain rice lines/ varieties against salinity

Bio-fortification of rice varieties with zinc and iron

To assess the response of some fine and coarse grain rice varieties to the application of Zinc (Zn) and Iron (Fe) for bio-fortification of rice grains, both fine and coarse grain rice varieties were strengthened with Zn and Fe. The study was carried out with the collaboration of Rapid Soil Fertility Survey and Soil Testing Institute, Thokar Niaz Baig, Lahore. The experiment was laid out in RCBD with three replications.

Rice leaves' analysis showed that percent increase in Zn and Fe concentration (ppm) was highest in Super Basmati (76 and 77%, respectively). Similar trend was also observed in grains of Super Basmati with highest concentration of Zn (42%) and Fe (30%).



Fig. 19: Bio-fortification of zinc and iron in leaves and grains of fine rice

In case of coarse varieties (Fig. 20), rice grains' analysis reflected that percent increase in Zn and Fe concentration (ppm) was highest in KSK 434 (37%) and (89%), respectively). Similar trend was also observed in grains of KSK 434 with highest concentration of Zn (21%) and Fe (23%).



Fig. 20: Bio-fortification of zinc and iron in leaves and grains of coarse rice

Evaluation of different models of fertilizers IV. ENTOMOLOGY for vield prediction of rice

This study was planned to verify various models for rice yield prediction at Rice Research institute, Kala Shah Kaku with the collaboration of Soil Chemistry Section, ISCES, AARI, Faisalabad. For this purpose five different fertilizer treatments i.e., T1 Control (0-0-0, NPK), T₂ Farmer practice (90-0-0, NPK), T₃ Departmental recommendation (150-90-60, NPK), T₄ University model (165-84-0, NPK) and T5 FFC model (143-35-50 NPK) were tested for yield prediction. For University and FFC models, fertilizer rates were calculated after basal analysis of soils and fixing the target yield of 6 t/ ha. The experiment was laid out in RCBD with three replications.

Maximum paddy yield (4.51 t/ha) was obtained from T₃ (Fig. 21) where fertilizer was applied according to the departmental recommendation which is statistically higher than T1 (2.15 t/ha) where no fertilizer was applied and T₂ having paddy yield of 3.32 t/ha and at par with T₄ and T₅ having paddy yields of 4.21 and 4.34 t/ha, respectively.



Fig. 21: Effect of different fertilizer models on paddy yield (LSD 0.519)

Screening of pesticides for the effective control of different rice pest under field conditions

To observe the efficacy of different pesticides for the effective control of rice pests along with standard treatments were tested for their effectiveness against target pests on Basmati 515 using standard agronomic practices under field conditions in RCBD layout, replicated thrice. Percent effectiveness of pesticides (Fig. 22-25) showed that all the pesticides effectively control the target pest/ insect than untreated check.



Fig. 22: Post- treatment percent effectiveness of insecticides against rice leaffolder with respect to control (LSD 30.996)



Fig. 23: Post- treatment infestation (whitehead) level of rice stem borers (LSD 0.3489)



Fig. 24: Post- treatment percent mortality after a week of treatment application with respect to control of rice planthoppers (LSD 1.2892)



Fig. 25: Post- treatment percent reduction in tiller damage by using rodenticides against rats in rice crop

Screening of breeding material for resistance against rice leaffolder (*Cnaphalocrocis medinalis*) under field conditions

Forty two fine and fifteen coarse grain rice lines/ varieties of local origin were tested and analyzed for their respective response against leaffolder by using Standard Evaluation System (SES) for Rice, 2002 developed by the IRRI, Philippine. Keeping in view the percentage infestation of rice leaffolder (Fig. 26) only three fine lines (BLB 1, BLB 4 and RRI 6) behaved as moderately resistant.



Fig. 26: Response of lines/ varieties against leaffolder

V. PLANT PATHOLOGY

Screening of rice lines/ varieties against rice blast (*Pyricularia oryzae*)

Fifty five lines/varieties were screened for their resistance against rice blast for further use in the breeding programme. The results indicate that six lines/ varieties were found moderately resistant against blast (Fig. 27).



Fig. 27: Response of lines/ varieties against rice blast

Screening of rice lines/ varieties against bacterial leaf blight (*Xanthomonas oryzae* pv. *oryzae*) disease

Fifty four lines/ varieties were screened for their resistance against bacterial leaf blight to find out resistant sources, against the disease. Assessment of the tested lines/ varieties was done following the SES (IRRI, 2002). According to the results, 23 lines/ varieties were found moderately resistant against the disease (Fig. 28).



Fig. 28: Response of lines/ varieties against bacterial leaf blight

Screening of genetic stock against stem rot (Sclerotium oryzae) disease

Fifty five lines/ varieties were screened against stem rot to find out resistant source, against the disease. Disease incidence data were recorded at maturity and the varieties were assessed following the SES for Rice (IRRI, 2002). Twenty three lines/ varieties were found moderately resistant against the disease (Fig. 29).



Fig. 29: Response of lines/ varieties against rice stem rot

Efficacy of different fungicides for the control of blast (*Pyricularia oryzae*) disease Six fungicides were tested for their effectiveness against paddy blast in RCBD layout with four replications on Basmati C-622. Test fungicides were sprayed at late booting stage and four days after panicle emergence. According to the results (Fig. 30) all the fungicides resulted in lower disease incidence as compared to control (83.05%). Significantly, lowest disease incidence (6.93%) was recorded in the plot where Castle 50WP was applied.



Fig. 30: Efficacy of different fungicides for the control of blast (LSD 2.966)

Effect of different chemicals on bacterial leaf blight (*Xanthomonas oryzae* pv oryzae) Seven chemicals were tested against bacterial leaf blight (BLB) in RCBD layout with four replications using Basmati 2000. Data on BLB disease incidence were recorded 21 days after inoculation. Results revealed that all the chemicals resulted in significantly lower disease incidence (Fig. 31). The lowest disease percentage was recorded in Gemstar Super 325SC (7.33%) as compared to untreated control (85.68%).



Fig. 31: Efficacy of different chemicals for the control of BLB (LSD 3.828)

Efficacy of different fungicides for the control of brown leaf spot of rice (*Helminthosporium oryzae*)

Seven fungicides were tested for their effectiveness against brown leaf spot of rice in RCBD lay out with three replications on Basmati 2000. Data on brown leaf spot disease incidence were recorded from booting to flowering stage. According to the results (Fig. 32), Sulfax Gold 80WDG gave the best results with the lowest disease incidence (9.75%) as compared to control (81.25%).



Fig. 32: Efficacy of different fungicides for the control of BLS (LSD 3.626)

VI. RICE TECHNOLOGY

Effect of transplanting date on the quality characteristics of different fine grain rice lines

Maximum total milled rice-TMR was recorded at transplanting date of 14th July (71.3%). Maximum head rice recovery- HR (59.2%) was recorded at transplanting date of 5th August (Fig. 33) followed by 14th July (54.4%). This reflects that fine grain lines performed better in terms of milling recovery when transplanted on August 05 than July 14.



Fig. 33: Rice recovery on the basis of date of transplanting
Maximum cooked grain length- CGL (15.9mm) was recorded for transplanting date of 5th August (Fig. 34) followed by transplanting date of 14th July 2014 (15.1mm) with 6.1% bursting (Fig. 35).



Fig. 34: CGL on the basis of date of transplanting



Fig. 35: Bursting percentage on the basis of date of transplanting



Fig. 37: CGL of regional adaptability trial

Regional Adaptability Trial

In Regional Adaptability Trial of fine rice, maximum TMR (72.3%) was recorded at Faisalabad followed by Kala Shah Kaku (71.9%). It was concluded that CGL was better at Sargodha, but bursting upon cooking was too high. However, with respect to cooking quality, best result was observed at the location of Kala Shah Kaku followed by Gujranwala.



Fig. 36: Head rice recovery in regional adaptability trial

Maximum HR (54.4%) was recorded at Kala Shah Kaku (Fig. 36) followed by Gujranwala (50.5%). It was concluded that maximum head rice recovery of fine grain lines was observed at Kala Shah Kaku followed by Gujranwala.

Maximum CGL (14.6mm) was observed at Kala Shah Kaku (Fig. 37) followed by Sargodha (14.0mm). Minimum bursting upon cooking (4.7%) was recorded at Kala Shah Kaku and Gujranwala followed by Faisalabad (5.6%).

VII. PUBLICATIONS

Refereed Research Paper

- Akhtar, M., M. S. Akhtar and M. Rizwan, 2014. Basmati- 515: A new variety with extra- long grain for productivity augmentation in Punjab, Pakistan. J. Agric. Res., 52 (1): 35- 42.
- Akhter, M., F. Amjad, H. S. Muzammil, S. Zia and Z. Haider, 2014. Studies to determine the effect of storage on extrusion stabilized raw and parboiled rice bran. Intern. J. Dev. Res., 4(9): 1966-1969.
- Akhter, M., M. A. Ali, Z. Haider and S. Muzammil, 2014. Efficacy of parboiling on physico-chemical properties of some promising lines/varieties of rice (*Oryza sativa* L.). Sci. Tech. Dev. 33 (3):115-122.
- Akhter, M., S. Zia, Z. Haider and A. M. Sabir, 2015. Associating light trap catches of some major rice insect Pests with prevailing environmental factors. Pak. J. Agri. Sci., 52 (3): 1-7.
- Akhter, M., S. Zia, Z. Haider and A.M. Sabir, 2015. Straining *indica* rice genotypes for resistance against prevalence of leaffolder *Cnaphalocrocis medinalis* Guenee and stem borers *Scripophaga incertulas* Walker. Pak. Entomol., 37(1): 61-66.
- Akhter, M., Z. Haider and M.A. Raza, 2015. Inactivation of Lipase enzyme by using Chemicals to maximize Rice Bran Shelf Life and its Edible Oil Recovery. International Journal of Scientific and Engineering Research, 6(6): 366-371 (IF 3.23).
- Akram, A., H. A. A. Khan, A. Qadir and A. M. Sabir, 2015. A Cross-Sectional Survey of Knowledge, Attitude and Practices

Related to Cutaneous Leishmaniasis and Sand Flies in Punjab, Pakistan. PLoS ONE 10(6): e0130929. doi:10.1371/journal pone.0130929 (IF 3.53).

- Asghar, M., M. Arshad, M. Afzal, A. M. Sabir, M. M. Q. Baig and M. Hussain, 2015. Farmers' Perceptions and Beliefs Regarding Future of Rice Crop in the Kallar Tract of the Punjab, Pakistan. Intern. J. Agric. Innov. Res., 3 (6): 1881-1886 (IF 1.126).
- Awan, T. H., P. C. Sta Cruz and B. S. Chauhan, 2015. Efficacy and Economics of Different Herbicides, Their Weed Species Selectivity, and the Productivity of Mechanized Dry-Seeded Rice. Crop Protection 78: 239-246.
- Awan, T. H., B. S. Chauhan and P. C Sta. Cruz, 2014. Physiological and morphological responses of *Ischaemum rugosum* Salisb. (wrinkled grass) to different nitrogen rates and rice seeding rates. PloS ONE 9(6): e98255. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0098255.
- Awan, T. H., B. S. Chauhan and Pompe C. Sta. Cruz, 2014. Influence of Environmental Factors on the Germination of *Urena lobata* L. and Its Response to Herbicides. PloS ONE 9(3): e90305. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0090305.
- 12. Awan, T. H., P. C. Sta Cruz and B. S. Chauhan, 2015. Growth analysis and biomass partitioning of *Cyperus iria* in response to rice planting density and nitrogen rate. Crop Protection. 74: 92-102.
- Awan, T. H., P. C. Sta. Cruz, S. Ahmad, and B. S. Chauhan, 2015. Effect of nitrogen application, rice planting density, and water regime on the morphological

plasticity and biomass partitioning of Chinese sprangletop (*Leptochloa chinensis*). Weed Science. 63: 448-460.

- Awan, T. H., B. S. Chauhan, and P. C. Sta. Cruz, 2014. Growth Plasticity of Junglerice (*Echinochloa colona*) for Resource Use When Grown with Different Rice (*Oryza sativa*) Planting Densities and Nitrogen Rates in Dry-Seeded Conditions. Weed Science, 62: 571–587.
- 15. Awan, T. H., P. C. Sta Cruz and B. S. Chauhan, 2014. Ecological significance of rice (*Oryza sativa*) planting density and nitrogen rates in managing the growth and competitive ability of itchgrass (*Rottboellia cochinchinensis*) in direct-seeded rice systems. Journal of Pest Science. 88: 427-438.
- Awan, T. H., P. C. Sta Cruz and B. S. Chauhan, 2015. Agronomic indices, growth, yield-contributing traits, and yield of dry-seeded rice under varying herbicides. Field Crops Research 177: 15– 25.
- Chauhan, B. S., S. Ahmed and T. H. Awan, 2015. Performance of sequential herbicides in dry-seeded rice in the Philippines. Crop Protection 74: 124-130.
- Chauhan, B. S., S. Ahmed, T. H. Awan, K. Jabran and S. Manalil, 2015. Integrated weed management approach to improve weed control efficiencies for sustainable rice production in dry-seeded systems. Crop Protection, 71: 19-24.
- Chauhan, B. S., T. H. Awan, G. Evengelista and Sudhir-Yadav, 2015. Effect of crop establishment methods and weed control treatments on weed

management, water saving, and rice yield. Field Crops Research. Field Crops Research, 172: 72–84.

- Haider, I., M. Akhter and A. M. Sabir, 2014. Evaluation of different insecticides against rice leaffolder *Cnaphalocrocis medinalis* (Guenee) under field conditions. Pak. J. Zool., 46(5): 1458-1461 (IF 0.4).
- 21. Lim, C. A. A., T. H. Awan, P. C. Sta. Cruz and B. S. Chauhan, 2015. Influence of Environmental Factors, Cultural Practices, and Herbicide Application on Seed Germination and Emergence Ecology of *Ischaemum rugosum* Salisb. PLOS ONE, DOI:10.1371/journal.pone.0137256 September 14, 2015.
- 22. Saleem, M.U., M. Akhter, U. Faroog, N. Iqbal and Z. Haider, 2015. Effect of depths different water on plant population and rice (Oryza sativa) yield of transplanting at time using mechanized transplanter (2015). International Journal of Scientific and Engineering Research, 6(6): 76-80 (IF 3.22).

Research papers accepted

- Akhter, M., M.S. Akhter and Z. Haider. PK 386 a newly approved high yielding, early maturing, long grain rice variety (2015). Journal of Agricultural Research.
- Akhter, M., F. Amjad and Z. Haider. Physico-chemical changes in grains of some advance lines/ varieties of rice (*Oryza sativa* L.) after parboiling (2015).Pakistan Journal of Agricultural Research.

Scientific Conferences

- Sabar, M., K. Aslam, S. M. Shah, G. Shabir, J. I. Wattoo, S. A. Naveed, M. Thomson, R. Serraj and M. Arif, 2014. Identification of a novel genomic region on chromosome 3 linked with water uptake in *indica* rice under water stress conditions using F2 population. International Rice Congress, 27 October- 1 November, 2014, Bangkok, Thailand, Abstr. IRC14-0814.
- 26. Sabir, A. M., M. Akhter, A. Qadir, I. Haider, M. Rizwan and S. Zia, 2014. Rice germplasm preference in relation to feeding behaviour of *Cnaphlocrosis medinalis* Gn. International Rice Congress, 27 Oct.- 1 Nov., Bangkok, Thailand, Abstr. IRC14- 1092.
- 27. Rashid, S., G. Abbas, Shehzad, S. Mustafa and M. Ali, 2014. Effect of Moringa root extract (MRE) on the yield of cotton (*Gossypium hirsutum* L). Abstr, 5th International conference on Agriculture, Food Security and Climate Change. 9-11.Sept., Univ. Poonch, Rawalakot, AJK, Pak. p: 162.
- 28. Abbas. G., S. Rashid, S. Mustafa, M. Akash and M. Ali, 2014. Screening of high yielding advance rice strains in sandy loam soils of Bahawalnagar, Punjab Pakistan. Abstr, 5th International conference on Agriculture, Food Security and Climate Change. 9- 11 Sept., Univ. Poonch, Rawalakot, AJK, Pak., p: 285.
- Ahmad, A., S. Rashid, S. Mustafa, G. Abbas and M. Ali, 2014. Effect of drip irrigation on citrus production in barren, uncultivated and sand dunes soil of Bahawalnagar region. Abstr, 5th International conference on Agriculture,

Food Security and Climate Change. 9-11.Sept., Univ. Poonch, Rawalakot, AJK, Pak. p: 304.

 Rizwan, M., A. M. Sabir, I. Haider, M. U. Hasan, M. Sagheer, K. Ali, 2015. Evaluation of insecticidal potential of *Eucalyptus camaldulensis* and *Melia azedarach* against red rust flour beetle (*Tribolium castaneum* Herbst). ZSP International Congress, Karachi.

Popular Article

 Rizwan, M., A. M. Sabir and M. Akhter, 2014. Dhaan key zarer rasan keerey, bemariyan aur inka insdaad. Zarat Nama, 53 (14): 6- 10.

Brochure

 Sabir, A. M. and M. Akhter, 2014. *Taruf:* Adara Tehqeiqat- i- Dhaan, Kala Shah Kaku, Punjab, Pakistan.

Book

33. Anonymous, 2014. Expert consultation hybrid rice development in Asia: Assessment of limitations and potential. In: Akhter, M., M. Riaz, M. Sabar, Z. Haider and T. Latif, Hybrid rice development in Pakistan: Assessment of limitations and potentials. FAO, p: 1- 31.

Newsletters

- Ali, R.I., N. Iqbal and M. Akhter, 2014. Direct seeding of Rice - A resource conservation Technology for sustainable Rice production. SAARC AgriNews, 8 (1): 4-5.
- 35. Ali, R. I., N. Iqbal and M. Akhter., 2014. Water saving techniques for rice crop under the prevailing water scarcity in Pakistan. SAARC AgriNews (Accepted).
- Sabir, A. M., A. R. Khan, M. Akhter, 2014-15. Rice Newsletter, 3-4(12).

VIII. SENIOR SCIENTISTS

Mr. Muhammad Saleem Akhter Rice Botanist (Rice Breeding) 0306-4730501 botanistrriksk@yahoo.com

Dr. Ghulam Abbas Rice Botanist (Rice Breeding) Rice Research Station, Bahawalnager. 0333-6617663 abbas1434@yahoo.com

Mr. Muhammad Iqbal Associate Rice Botanist (Rice Breeding) 0322-8081650 iqbalrriksk@yahoo.com

Dr. Muhammad Ijaz Assistant Botanist (Rice Breeding) 0300-9422712 cmijaz66@gmail.com

Mr. Tahir Latif Assistant Botanist (Rice Breeding) 0300-4138995 tlatif_2008@yahoo.com

Dr. Muhammad Sabar Assistant Botanist (Rice Breeding) 0321-16660344 muhammadsabar@gmail.com

Mr. Rana Inayt Ali Agronomist (Agronomy) 0333-4771697 ranainayatali@yahoo.com Dr. Nadeem Iqbal (Agronomy) Assistant Research Officer (Agronomy) 0300-4190654 nadeemaro@yahoo.co.uk

Dr. Azher Mustafa Plant Pathologist (Plant Pathology) 0300-7892139 azher_mustafa@yahoo.com

Dr. Saleem II Yasin Assistant Pathologist (Plant Pathology) 0300-4105889 saleemilyasin@yahoo.com

Dr. Arshed Makhdoom Sabir Assistant Entomologist (Entomology) 0321-6135484 amsabir@yahoo.co.uk

Mr. Zaheen Manzoor Assistant Research Officer (Soil Chemistry) 0300-8007899 zaheenm40@yahoo.com

Mr. Mohsin Raza Assistant Research Officer (Food Technology) 0305-9302526 mohsin.aliraza@yahoo.com

Ms. Neelum Shahzadi Statistical Officer (Statistics) 0321-4514242 so_rriksk09@yahoo.com

IX. METROLOGICAL DATA





